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INDEPENÐENT AUIMTORS REPORT 

To thc Board of Dircctors of 
Lycéc Français dc la Nouvcllc-Orléans 
Ncw Orlcans, Louisiana 

Report on the Atidit of the Consolidated Financial Staternents 

Opinion 
Wc havc auditcd thc accompanying consolidatcd financial statcmcnts of Lycéc Français dc la Nouvcllc-Orléans, 
which comprisc thc consolidatcd statcmcnts of financial position as of Junc 30, 2022 and 202 1 and thc rclatcd 
consolidatcd statcmcnts of activitics, functional cxpcnscs and cash flows for thc ycars thcn cndcd, and thc rclatcd 
notcs to thc consolidatcd fmancial statcmcnts. 

In our opinion, thc consolidatcd financial statcmcnts rcfcrrcd to abovc prcscnt fairly, in all matcrial rcspccts, thc 
financial position of Lycéc Français dc la Nouvcllc-Orléans as of Junc 30, 2022 and 202 1, and thc rcsults of its 
operations and its cash flows for thc ycars thcn cndcd in accordancc with accounting principlcs gcncrally acccptcd 
in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica. 

Basis for Opinion 
Wc conductcd our audits in accordancc with auditing standards gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs ofAmcrica 
and thc standards applicablc to financial audits containcd in Government Auditing Standards, issucd by thc 
Comptrollcr Gcncral of thc Unitcd Statcs. Our rcsponsibilitics undcr thosc standards arc furthcr dcscribcd in thc 
Auditors Rcsponsibilitics for thc Audit of thc Consolidatcd Financial Statcmcnts scction of our rcport. Wc arc 
rcquircd to bc indcpcndcnt ofLycéc Français dc la Nouvcllc-Orléans and to mcct our othcr cthical rcsponsibilitics, 
in accordancc with thc rcicvant cthical rcquircmcnts rclating to our audits. Wc bclicvc that thc audit cvidcncc wc 
havc obtaincd is sufficicnt and appropriatc to providc a basis for our audit opinions. 

Correction of an error 
As discusscd in Notc 15 to thc consolidatcd fmancial statcmcnts, ccrtain crrors rcsulting in undcrstatcmcnt of 
amounts prcviously rcportcd for accrucd lcavc as of Junc 30, 202 1, wcrc discovcrcd by managcmcnt of Lycéc 
Français dc la Nouvcllc-Orléans during thc currcnt ycar. Accordingly, amounts rcportcd for accrucd lcavc and 
accrucd lcavc cxpcnsc havc bccn rcstatcd in thc 2021 consolidatcd financial statcmcnts now prcscntcd, and an 
adjustmcnt has bccn madc to nct asscts without donor rcstriction as of Junc 30, 202 1, to corrcct thc crror. Our 
opinion is not modificd with rcspcct to that mattcr. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Consoliðateð Financial Statements 
Managcmcnt is rcsponsiblc for thc prcparation and fair prcscntation of thc consolidatcd financial statcmcnts in 
accordancc with accounting principlcs gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica, and for thc dcsign, 
implcmcntation, and maintcnancc of intcmal control rcicvant to thc prcparation and fair prcscntation of 
consolidatcd financial statcmcnts that arc frcc from matcrial misstatcmcnt, whcthcr duc to fraud or crror. 
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-
Orléans ability to continue as a going concem within one year after the date that the consolidated financial 
statements are available to be issued. 

Auðitors Responsibilities for the Auðit of the Consoliðateð Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated fmancial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a 
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material 
rnisstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud rnay involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intemal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence 
the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the consolidated fmancial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing 
Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures 
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated 
financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans s intemal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation ofthe consolidated financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in ourjudgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans s ability to continue as a going concem 
for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to cornmunicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain intemal control related matters that we 
identified 
during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a 
whole. The supplemental information included on pages 20 — 23 and the accompanying schedules of federal 
awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederai Regulations Part 200, Unform  Administrative Requirements, 
Cost Principies, andAudit Requirements ofFederal Awards, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and 
are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the consolidated fmancial statements. Such infonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including 
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comparing and rcconciling such information dircctly to thc undcrlying accounting and othcr rccords uscd to 
prcparc thc consolidatcd financial statcmcnts or to thc consolidatcd financial statcmcnts thcmsclvcs, and othcr 
additional proccdurcs in accordancc with auditing standards gcncrally acccptcd in thc Unitcd Statcs of Amcrica. 
In our opinion, thc supplcmcntal infonnation on pagcs 20-23 and thc schcdulc of fcdcral awards is fairly statcd, 
in all inatcrial rcspccts, in rclation to thc consolidatcd financial statcincnts as a wholc. 

Other Reportin Refluireð by GovernmentAuditinjStandards 

In accordancc with Government Auditing Standards, wc havc also issucd our rcport datcd Dcccinbcr 1, 2022, on 
our considcration of Lycéc s intcmal control ovcr financial rcporting and on our tcsts of its compliancc with 
ccrtain provisions of laws, rcgulations, contracts, and grant agrccmcnts and othcr inattcrs. Thc purposc of that 
rcport is solcly to dcscribc thc scopc of our tcsting of intcmal control ovcr financial rcporting and compliancc and 
thc rcsults of that tcsting, and not to providc an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of Lycéc s intcmal control ovcr 
financial rcporting or on compliancc. That rcport is an intcgral part of an audit performcd in accordancc with 
Government Auditing Standards and in considcring Lycéc s intcmal control ovcr fmancial rcporting and 
coinpliancc. 

Mctairic, Louisiana 
Dcccmbcr 1, 2022 
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$ 4,534,917 
995 

25,636 
364,941 

66,408 
80,514 

5,073,41 1 

$ 7,656,781 

485,852 

62,950 

8,205,583 

39,379 
44,743 

19,071,344 

19,155,466 

$ 24,228,877 

84,201 

9,397,858 

9,482,059 

$ 17,687,642 

LYCÉE FRANCAIS ÐE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
CONSOLIÐATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL lOSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ASSETS 
Restateð 

2022 2021 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Grants receivable - due from private foundations 
Grants receivable - due from governinent agencies 
Prepaid expenses 
Promises to give for short-term purposes, net 

Total current assets 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Promises to give for long-term purposes, net 
Cash restricted for long-term purposes 
Property and equipment, net 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES ANÐ NET ASSETS 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Notes payable 
Line of credit 
Paycheck Protection Program loan 

Total current liabilities 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Notes payable 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Without donor restrictions 
With donor restrictions 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

$ 3,418,552 $ 3,528,947 
88,172 

3,138,587 
1,611,300 

6,645,31 1 5,140,247 

8,769,498 4,096,002 

8,769,498 4,096,002 

15,414,809 9,236,249 

7,919,840 7,615,217 
894,228 836,176 

8,814,068 8,45 1,393 

$ 24,228,877 $ 17,687,642 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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4,920,137 
427,998 
451,671 

1,373,692 
911,612 

4,449 
238,967 

2,472,069 
350,960 

11,151,555 
5,032,810 

16,184,365 

304,623 58,052 

4,920,137 5,008,734 
427,998 482,512 
451,671 - 

1,373,692 1,394,522 
911,612 723,570 

4.449 - 
238,967 107,278 

2,472,069 1,677,890 
350,960 72,392 

1 1,151,555 9,466,898 
5,032,810 2,989,352 

16,184,365 12,456,250 

- 462,089 

362,675 1,970,298 (195,150) 

5,008,734 
482,512 

1,394,522 
723,570 

107,278 
1,677,890 

72,392 
9,466,898 
2,989,352 

12,456,250 

462,089 

1,775,148 

7,615,217 836,176 8,45 1,393 5,644,919 1,03 1,326 6,676,245 

$ 7,919,840 $ 894,228 $ 8,814,068 S 7,615,217 $ 836,176 $ 8,451,393 

LYCÉE FRANCAIS ÐE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES 

YEARS ENDEÐ .JIJNE 30, 2022 ANÐ 2021 
Restated 

2022 2021 
Without With Ðonor Without With Ðonor 

Ðonor Restictions Restrictions Tota1 Ðonor Restictions Restrictions Total 
Revenues anð support: 

Federal grants 
State grants 
Tuition and activity income 
Contributions 
Payroll Protection Program loan forgiveness 
Other income 
Net assets released from restrictions 

Total revenues and support 

Expenses: 
Program services: 

Elementary and kindergarten 
Prelnndergarten 
Highschool 
Special education 

erations and maintenance 
Extracurricular activities 
Aftercare 
Stuðent services 
Other program services 

Total program services 
Support services 

Total expenses 

Capital contributions 

Change in net assets 

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR. 
RESTATEÐ 

NET ASSETS AT ENÐ OF YEAR 

2,013,047 $ - $ 2,013,047 $ 1,258,562 $ - $ 1,258,562 
12,191,152 - 12,191,152 11,818,024 - 11,818,024 

210,945 - 210,945 141,473 - 141,473 
347,817 73,335 421,152 289,408 37,242 326,650 

1,611,300 - 1,611,300 - - - 
99,444 - 99,444 224,600 - 224,600 
15,283 (15,283) - 232,392 (232,392) - 

16,488,988 58.052 16,547,040 13,964,459 (195, 150) 13,769,309 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements. 
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LYCËE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
CONSOLIDATEÐ STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEARS ENÐEÐ JUNE 30. 2022 ANÐ 2021 

2022 
Supporting Services 

Management 
Program and Gencral Fundraising Total 

$ 7,413,756 $ 1,601,366 $ 97,716 $ 9,112,838 
1,098,211 547,746 16,612 1,662,569 
1,400,446 233,170 - 1,633,616 

911,612 892,098 19,551 1,823,261 
300,509 800,049 20,402 1,120,960 

27,021 788,818 15,282 831,121 

$ 11,151,555 $ 4,863,247 $ 169,563 $ 16,184,365 

Salaries 
Emp1oyee benefits 
Materials and supplies 
Occupancy 
Professional and technical services 
Miscellaneous 

Total expenses 

(continued) 

The accompanyirïg notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 

Restated 
2021 

Program and General Ftindraising Total 
Sa1aries S 6,548,935 $ 1,491,377 $ 50,219 $ 8,090,531 
Emp1oyee benefits 945,454 308,845 8,537 1,262,836 
Materials and supplies 1,014,241 148,716 618 1,163,575 
Occupancy 731,905 166,675 5,612 904,192 
Professional and technical services 167,527 265,346 315 433,188 
Miscellaneous 58,836 484,700 58,392 601,928 

Tota1 expenses $ 9,466,898 $ 2,865,659 $ 123,693 $ 12,456,250 

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 AND 2021 
Restated 

2022 2021 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Change in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile cbange in net assets 

to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Depreciation expense 
(Recovery of) bad dcbt expense 
Forgiveness ofPPP 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts receivable 
Grants receivable 
Prepaid expenses 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Deferred revenue 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES: 
Purchases ofproperty and equipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Promises to give for long-term purposes 
Payments on notes payable 
Proceeds from notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net cliange in cash 

Cash, beginning ofyear 

Cash, end ofyear 

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
Cash 
Cash restricted for long-term purposes 

Total cash and restricted cash 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMAT1ON: 
Capital contribution from third party 
Net capitalized interest in constmction in progress 

Noncash investing transaction: 
Change in accounts payable related to proPcrtY  and equipincnt 

$ 362,675 $ 1,775,148 

347,135 154,880 
15,283 (58,680) 

(1,611,300) - 

(995) - 
95,275 (117,512) 

(66,408) 4,487 
(1 10,395) (100,673) 

- (52,285) 

(968,730) 1,605,365 

(10.020.621) (5, l 81,472) 

(10,020,62 l) (5, l 8 1,472) 

11,975 116,454 
(56,703) - 

7,956,958 4,096,002 

7,912,230 4,2 12,456 

(3,077,12 l) 636,349 

7,656,781 7,020,432 

$ 4,579,660 $ 7,656,781 

$ 4,534,917 $ 7,656,781 
44,743 - 

$ 4,579,660 $ 7,656,781 

$ - $ 462,089 
- 8,469 

$ - $ 2,340,030 

liic accornpanying n()tcs are an integral part ofthese consolidated financial statements. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Surnrnary of Sinificant Accountin Policies 

Organization 

Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (Lycée or LFNO) was incorporated as an educational 
institution organized to create a premier academic and multicultural school environment to inspire its 
students to reach their full potential. Lycée comrnenced operations with the 20 1 1-20 12 school year. 
At June 30, 2022, Lycée offers classes in Pre-K4 through eleventh grade organized per the French 
education model. 

The Board of Elementary and Secondary Education (BESE) approved the granting of a charter to 
Lycée effective June 30, 2011 for an initialperiod ending on June 30, 2016, to operate a Type 2 Charter 
School, as defined in LA R.S. 17:3998(A)(2). This charter was renewed on july 1, 2016 for seven 
years ending on June 30, 2023. 

During the year ended June 30, 20 18, Amis du Lycée Français (Amis du Lycée) was incorporated as 
a supporting foundation organized to assist Lycée with fundraising. 

During the year ended June 30, 2020, 160 1 Leonidas LLC (160 1 Leonidas) was formed to assist Lycée 
with the rehabilitation and development of a historic building located at 160 1 Leonidas Street, New 
Orleans, Louisiana. The building will be used as a school building upon completion. Lycée was the 
original member of 160 Leonidas and held 100% of the membership interest. On July 1, 2020 
pursuant to the Contribution Agreement, Lycée transferred its original membership interests and prior 
contributions to 160 1 Leonidas Managing Member lnc., (160 1 Managing Member) and the managing 
member became a member of 160 1 Leonidas. 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Lycée, Amis du Lycée, and 1601 
Leonidas (collectively, the Organization) because Lycée has a controlling financial interest in Amis 
du Lycée and through an operating lease agreement with 160 1 Leonidas, a special-purpose entity 
lessor. A11 significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

Basis of Accounting and Presentation of Net Assets 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (US GAAP). 

US GAAP requires the Organization to report information regarding its financial position and 
activities according to the following net asset classifications: 

Net assets without donor restrictions — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed 
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives ofthe 
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organizations 
management and board of directors. 



LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Poiicies (continued) 

Basis of Accounting and Presentation of Net Assets (continued) 

Net assets with donor restrictions — Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and 
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by 
actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual 
in nature, whereby the donor has stipulated thc funds be maintained in perpetuity. 

Donor restricted contributions are reported as increase in net assets with donor restrictions. When a 
restriction expires, net assets are reclassified from net assets with donor restrictions to net assets 
without donor restrictions in the consolidated statements ofactivities. 

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards 

In September 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-07, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958), Presentation 
and Disclosures by Not-for-Profit Entities for Contributed Nonfinancial Assets. The ASU requires 
nonprofits to change their financial statement presentation and disclosure ofcontributed nonflnancial 
assets, or gifts-in-kind. The FASB issued the update in an effort to improve transparency in reporting 
nonprofit gifts-in-kind. The ASU requires the new standard to be applied retrospectively, with 
amendments taking effect for the Organizations fiscaI year ending June 30, 2022. 

Accounting Pronouncements Issued but Not Yet Adopted 

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 20 l 6-02, Leases. This accounting standard requires lessees 
to recognize assets and liabilities related to Iease arrangements longer than 12 months on the baIance 
sheet as well as additional disclosures. In july 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-1 l, Leases (Topic 
842), Targeted Improvements, to simplify the lease standards implementation. On June 3, 2020, the 
FASB deferred the effective date of this standard for certain entities. This standard will be effective 
for the Organizations fiscal year ending June 30, 2023. 

The Organization is currently assessing the impact ofthis pronouncement on its consolidatcd financiai 
statements. 

Cash 

Cash inc1udes amounts on deposit at local financial institutions. The Organization held no cash 
equivalents as ofJune 30, 2022 and 202 1. Restricted cash represents amounts held by the Organization 
for legally imposed debt restrictions. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Poiicies (continued 

Grants Receivable 

Grants receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. 
Management provides for uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense and an 
adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of individual 
accounts. Balances that are still outstanding afier management has used reasonable collection efforts 
are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. As of 
June 30, 2022 and 2021, management did not deem any grants receivable to be uncollectable; 
therefore, no allowance was recorded. 

Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are recognized as revenue or gains in the period received and as assets 
or decreases ofliabilities depending on the form ofthe benefits received. Conditional promises to give 
are recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met and the promises 
become unconditional. For the year ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the Organization recorded $ 15,283 
and $5,400 of bad debt expense and $0 and $64,080 of recovery of bad debt, respectively. The net 
amounts are included in miscellaneous expense by nature and management and general by function 
on the consolidated statement of functional expenses. At June 30, 2022 and 2021, management has 
established an allowance of $45,776 and $30,493, respectively, for estimated uncollectable promises 
to give. 

Property and Eguipment 

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures for property and equipment in excess of $5,000 and 
expenditures for repairs and miprovements that materially prolong the useful lives of assets 
capitalized. Property is recorded at historica1 cost or, if donated, at the approximate fair va1ue at the 
date ofdonation. Depreciation ofthese assets is provided on the straight-line basis over their estimated 
useful lives of 5 years for technology, 5-7 years for leasehold iinprovements, 7-10 years for furniture 
and equipment and 30 years for building. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and 
related depreciation are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in the 
consolidated statements of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend 
the useful lives of the respective assets are expensed as incurred. 

Management reviews the carrying values ofproperty and equipment for impairmcnt whenever events 
or circumstances indicate that the carrying va1ue ofan asset may not be recoverab!c from the estimated 
future cash flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired, 
an iinpairment loss is recognized to the extent carrying va1ue exceeds the fair va1ue ofthe asset. There 
were no indicators of asset impairment during the year ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1. 



LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued) 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition 

Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditiona1 promise to give, 
or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional contributions are not recognized until 
the conditions on which they depend have been substantially met. 

Revenues from federal and state grants are conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or 
the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue when 
the Organization has met the performance requirements and/or incurred expenditures in compliance 
with specific grant provisions. Amounts received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are 
reported as refundable advances in the consolidated statements offinancial position. Lycée recognized 
as revenue all funds related to these grants during the year ended Juiie 30, 2022 and 202 1. 

Tuition and activity income includes school year tuition for Pre-K4, summer camp tuition, and fees 
related to afterschool care services. Tuition and activity income received in the current academic year 
that are applicable to the following academic year are deferred and amortized in the foilowing 
academic year over a set timeframe. 

Contributed Scrvices 

Lycée receives services donated by parents and community members in carrying out Lycées mission; 
however, the consolidated financial statements do not reflect the va1ue of these contributed services 
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by US GAAP. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financia1 statements in conformity with US GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the ðisclosures and the reported amounts 
of assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts 
ofrevenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates, 
and those differences could be material. 

Functionai Expenses 

The costs ofproviding the various programs and activities have been summarized on a functional basis 
in the consolidated statements of activities. The consolidated statements of functional expenses 
present the natural classification detail of expenses by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been 
allocated among the instructional and supporting services benefited. The majority of costs incurred 
are charged directly to the function that benefits from the expense. Key expense categories that are 
allocated include salaries and benefits as well as occupancy. Salaries and benefits are allocated based 
on time and effort. Occupancy is allocated based on use of space. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Summary of Sinificant Accountin Policies (continued 

Tax Exempt Status 

Lycée and Amis du Lycée are nonprofit organizations exempt from income taxes under provisions of 
the lnternal Revenue Service Code Sections 501(c)(3) and the Louisiana Revised Stattites; therefore, 
no provision has been made for federal and state income taxes. 1601 Leonidas LLC is incorporated as 
a low profit limited liability company subject to Interna1 Revenue Service Code Section 170(c)(2)(b) 
and Louisiana Act 417 of2010. 

Lycée applies a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold for all tax uncertainties. This approach 
only allows the recognition of those tax benefits that have a greater than 50% percent likelihood of 
being sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities. As a result ofimplementing this approach, 
Lycée has reviewed its tax positions and determined there were no outstanding or retroactive tax 
positions with less than a 5O% likelihood of being sustained upon examination by the taxing 
authorities. 

2. Liouiditv and Availabilitv 

The Organization regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs 
and other contractual commitments. 

The Organization receives the majority of its revenue from the State of Louisiana Minimum 
Foundation Program Funding (MFP) and from various federal grants passed through the State of 
Louisiana. The grant amounts are appropriated each year by the federal and state govermnents. 

The Organization manages its available cash to meet general expenditures following three guiding 
principles: 

• Operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability; 
• Maintaining Iiquid assets; and 
• Maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurancc for 6() days of operating 

expenses. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEÐ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. Liciuidity and Availability (continued) 

The following represents the Organizations financial assets and those available to meet general 
expenditures within twelve months at June 30. 

Financial assets at year-end: 
Cash 
Accounts receivable 
Grants receivable - due from private foundations 
Grants receivable - due from government agencies 
Promises to give current, net 

Total financial assets 

Less amounts not available to be within one year 
for general expenditures 

Restricted cash 
Net assets with donor restrictions 

Financial assets available for general expenditures 
within one year 

3. Property and Eciuipment 

Property and equipment is surnnarized as follows at June 30: 

Land 

Building and improvements 

Leasehold improvements 

Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 

Construction-in-progress 

Less accumulated depreciation 

Property anð equipment, net  

2021 

$ 7,656,781 

485,852 
62,950 

8,205,583 

44,743 
894,228 
938,971 

836,176 
836,176 

$ 4,112,775 $ 7,369,407 

2021 

$ 360,000 

66,009 

397,873 

544,930 

8,794,674 

10,163,486 

(765,628) 

$ 9,397,858 

2022 

$ 4,579,660 
995 

25,636 
364,941 
80,514 

5,051,746 

2022 

$ 360,000 

66,009 

19,149,297 

608,800 

20,184,106 

(1,112,762) 

$ 19,071,344 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the building was comp1eted and put into service in January 2022. 
See Note 9. 
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2022 
$ 567,318 

18,000 
3,910 

305,000 
$ 894,228 

2021 
$ 531,176 

305 ,000 
$ 836,176 

LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATEÐ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4. Promises to Give 

Unconditional promises to give are estimated to be collected as follows at June 30: 

2022 2021 
$ 114,697 $ 95,506 

50,972 82,138 
165,669 177,644 

(45,776) (30,493) 
$ 119,893 $ 147,151 

Within one year 
In one to five years 

Less allowance for uncollectable promises to give 

5. Net Assets with Donor Restrictions 

Net assets with donor restrictions are as follows at June 30: 

Priestley carnpus development - time anð purpose restrictions 
Library - time and purpose restrictions 
General programs - time and purpose restrictions 
Hih school start-up and growth - time and purpose restrictions 

6. Operatin Leases 

At June 30, 2022, Lycée had several lease agreements in place for the school facilities used. Lycée 
currently leases facilities at its Patton Street and Eleonore Street campuses. The remaining lease terms 
range from one to six years and have maturities ranging from 2022 to 2027. A11 leases in effect as of 
June 30, 2022, have renewal options. The fixed minimum amount for thc Patton Street lease will 
increase at 5% annually. 

Future minimun lease payments under operating leases as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 Amount 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
Thereafter 

$ 352,032 
331,833 
348,425 
365,846 
384,138 
403 ,345 

Rent expense for all operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 was $404,947 and 
$354,504, respectively. 



LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

6. Oneratin Leases (continuedì 

On july 1, 2018, Lycée entered into a lease agreement with the Orleans Parish School Board (OPSB) 
for the use of facilities and its contents at its Johnson location. The lease expired on June 30, 202 1, 
and was renewed through June 30, 2023. Lycée agrees to pay OPSB a Use Fee and participate in 
OPSBs Per Pupil Unit Cost Program (Unit Cost Program). The Use Fee shall be the per pupil share 
of the actual costs of the property, boiler and machineiy, terrorism, disaster management and flood 
insurance of all OPSB-controlled school facilities participating in the Unit Cost Program, including 
any insurance brokerage fee, unrelated to recovery of capital costs or depreciation that would be 
recovered in a traditional lease relationship. The land and building is not owned by Lycée and, 
therefore, is not included in property and equipment. 

On july 1, 2020, Lycée entered into a lease agreement with OPSB for the use of facilities and its 
contents at its McNair location. The lease expired on June 30, 202 1, and was renewed through June 
30, 2023. Lycée agrees to pay OPSB a Use Fee and participate in OPSBs Per Pupil Unit Cost Program 
(Unit Cost Program). The Use Fee shall be the per pupil share ofthe actual costs ofthe property, boiler 
and machinery, terrorism, disaster management and flood insurance of all OPSB-controlled school 
facilities participating in the Unit Cost Program, including any insurance brokerage fee, unrelated to 
recovery of capital costs or depreciation that would be recovered in a traditional lease relationship. 
The land and building is not owned by Lycée and, therefore, is not included in property and equipment. 

7. State Tax Credit for Oualified Rehabilitation of Historic Structure 

During the year ended June 30, 202 1, the Organization entered into an historic tax credit purchase 
agreement with Enhanced Capital Consulting, Inc. (Enhanced Capita1) to fund the construction of a 
new campus located at 160 1 Leonidas Street, New Orleans, Louisiana (the Project). The Organization 
has incurred qualified rehabilitation expenses of approximately $ 14.4 million on construction of the 
new campus. Under LA R.S. 47:60 19, the Organization is eligible to receive twenty percent (20%) of 
total eligible rehabilitation expenditures through the Louisiana Department of Revenue (LDR), upon 
confirmation ofthe certified amount ofthe tax credit by the LDR. Pursuant to an agreement between 
Enhanced Capital and the Organization, the Organization will sell Enhanced Capital 100% ofthe tax 
credits generated. Construction was completed in December 202 1 and the final certifications were 
submitted to the LDR in October 2022 for confirmation of the amount of tax credits earned. 

8. Notes Payabie 

During the year ended June 30, 202 1, the Organization entered into a $3, 138,856 non-revolving line 
of credit loan agreement with a financial institution to finance the construction, rehabilitation, and 
development of the new campus described in Note 7. The loan has an annual interest rate of 1 .25% 
over the prime rate as published in the Wa1I Street Journal and is secured by substantially a11 assets of 
the Organization. Accrued interest shall be due and payable in monthly installments beginning 
September 1, 2020, until maturity on which date any unpaid accrued interest shall be due and payable 
in full. Principal shall be due and payable in a single payment on July 3 1, 2022. Subsequent to year 
end, the maturity was extended to December 3 1, 2022. At June 30, 2022 and 202 1, the balance on the 
loan was $3,138,587 and $1,228,801, respectively. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

8. Notes Payabie (continued) 

Dtiring the year ended Jtine 30, 202 1, the Organization entered into a $9,475,970 promissoly note with 
a third party lender to finance the construction, rehabilitation, and development of the new campus 
described in Note 7. The loan has an interest rate of0% from the date ofthe loan until September 30, 
2021, 1% for the following year and will increase 1% per annum to a maximum of5%. Until the full 
enrolhnent date, the loan is amortized at one-twelfth of 1 % of the outstanding principal balance as of 
September 30, 202 1 (the operational date) and, on and after the full enrollment date, one-twelfth of 
2% ofthe principal balance. Fu11 enroliment is defined as the first date the school achieves enrollinent 
equal to 1 O0% of capacity permitted by the agreement with the authorizer which at this time is the 
Board of Elementary and Secondary Education of the State of Louisiana. The loan is secured by all 
property, rights, interests and privileges subject to the liens granted the lender, or any security trustee 
of 1601 Leonidas LLC; including the construction documents (General Contractor and Architect) 
during the construction ofthe property. The loan matures on the first day ofthe month following the 
date that is sixty-one months after the date on which the Project is placed in service. The Project was 
placed in service in December 202 1. At June 30, 2022, the balance on the promissoly note was 
$8,857,670 and accrued interest was $7,388. 

9. Related Party Lease Commitment 

Lycée entered into an operating lease agreement with 1601 Leonidas, a related party, on july 2 1, 2020, 
for use ofthe historic building Iocated at 160 1 Leonida Street. The lease payments began in December 
2021 and terminates 10 years after the commencement date. Future minimum lease payments 
receivable under these leases are as follows: 

2023 $ 461,250 
2024 636,246 
2025 787,086 
2026 845,046 
2027 861,948 
ThereaRer 3.859.227 
Total S 7Å5OE803 

Rental income was approximately $280,000 for the year ended June 30, 2022. A1I amounts arc 
eliminated in consolidation. 

10. Defined ( on tribution Retiremeiit Plan 

Lycée has a defined contribution plan (the P1an) that was adopted on July 20, 20 1 1. The P1an covers 
all employees of Lycée who are twenty-one years of age or older and who have completed one year 
of continuous service with 1,000 hours. Under the terms of the P1an, Lycée matches 100% of the flrst 
5% of eligible compensation. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 202 1, Lycée made employer 
matching contributions to the P1an of $3 1 1, 133 and $253,909, respectively and is included in program 
services on the consolidated statements of activities. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

11. Credit Risk Concentration 

The Organization deposits its cash with financial institutions in the greater New Orleans area. As of 
June 30, 2022 and 202 1, all cash accounts at each financial institution are insured up to $250,000 by 
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. From time to time the amounts on deposit may exceed the 
federally insured Iimits. The Organization has not experienced any losses and does not believe that 
significant credit risk exists as a result of this practice. 

12. Continencies — Grant Prorams 

Lycée participates in a number of state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various 
rules and regulations. Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and 
adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that Lycée has not complied with the rules 
and regulations governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required and the 
collectability of any related receivable as of June 30, 2022 and 2021 might be impaired. In 
managements opinion, there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with the 
rules and regulations governing state and federal grants; therefore, no provision has been recorded in 
the accompanying consolidated financial statements for such contingencies. Any costs that wou1d be 
disallowed would be recognized in the period agreed upon by the grantor agency and Lycée. 

13. Economic Dependenç 

Lycée receives the majority of its revenue from MFP and from various federal grants passed through 
the Orleans Parish School Board. The grant amounts are appropriated each year by the federal and 
state governments. If significant budget cuts are made at the federal and/or state level, the amount of 
funds Lycée receives cou1d be reduced significantly and have an adverse impact on its operations. 
Management is not aware of any actions that will significantly affect the amount of funds Lycée will 
receive relating to its grant awards. 

14. Paycheck Protection Proram 

During the year ended June 30, 202 1, the Lycée applied for and was approved for a $ 1,6 1 1,300 loan 
under the Paycheck Protection Program administered by the Small Business Aclministration as part of 
the relief efforts related to COVID- l 9. The loan was included within current liabilities on the 
consolidated statements of financial position as of June 30, 202 1. Lycée was granted full forgiveness of 
the loan in December 202 1 and the entire proceeds ofthe loan amount was recognized as revenue without 
donor restriction for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

15. Restatement — Correction of an Error 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, management discovered that the accrued leave balance owed to 
employees in the amount of $2 19,026 had not been properly accrued in the prior year. The accrued 
leave balance as June 30, 2020 was $348,652. Accordingly, an adjustment of $ 129,626 was made to 
decrease the 202 1 accrued leave expense in the consolidated statements of activities, which increased 
profits for the year ended June 30, 202 1. 

See the summary ofchanges in net assets as a result of the restatements as discussed above: 

June 30, 2020 June 30, 2021 

Net assets, as previously reported 

Correction of an error 

Net assets at beginning of year, restated 

Change in net asscts, as previously reportcd 

Correction of an error 

Change in net assets, (as restated)  

$ 7,024,897 S 8,670,419 

(348,652) 219,026 

$ 6,676,245 $ 8,451,393 

$ 1,645,522 

129,626 

S 1,775,148 

16. Subsepuent Events 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 1, 2022, the date that the financial 
statements were available to be issued, and determined that no additional disclosures are necessary. No 
events occurring after this date have been considercd for inclusion in these flnancial statements. 
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Lycée Français de la Amis du 1601 Consolidated
Nouvelle-Orléans Lycée Français Leonidas, LLC Eliminations Total

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash 4,377,783$                143,736$             13,398$               -$                    4,534,917$           
Accounts receivable 995                            -                       -                       -                      995                       
Grants receivable - due from private foundations 25,636                       -                       -                       -                      25,636                  
Grants receivable - due from government agencies 364,941                     -                       -                       -                      364,941                
Prepaid expenses 66,408                       -                       -                       -                      66,408                  
Promises to give for short-term purposes, net -                             80,514                 -                       -                      80,514                  
Due from related parties 790,476 250,570 307,099 (1,348,145)          -                        

Total current assets 5,626,239                  474,820               320,497               (1,348,145)          5,073,411             

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Promises to give for long-term purposes, net -                             39,379                 -                       -                      39,379                  
Cash restricted for long-term purposes -                             -                       44,743                 -                      44,743                  
Property and equipment, net 200,404 -                       18,870,940 -                      19,071,344           
Investment in 1601 Leonidas, LLC 5,067,641 -                       -                       (5,067,641)          -                        

Total noncurrent assets 5,268,045                  39,379                 18,915,683          (5,067,641)          19,155,466           

Total assets 10,894,284$              514,199$             19,236,180$        (6,415,786)$        24,228,877$         

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 2,393,474$                6,384$                 1,018,694 -$                    3,418,552$           
Due to related parties 564,791 -                       783,354               (1,348,145)          -                        
Notes payable, current portion -                             -                       88,172                 -                      88,172                  
Line of Credit, current portion -                             -                       3,138,587            -                      3,138,587             
Paycheck Protection Program loan -                             -                       -                       -                      -                        

Total current liabilities 2,958,265                  6,384                   5,028,807            (1,348,145)          6,645,311             

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Notes payable -                             -                       8,769,498 -                      8,769,498             

Total noncurrent liabilities -                             -                       8,769,498            -                      8,769,498             

Total liabilities 2,958,265                  6,384                   13,798,305          (1,348,145)          15,414,809           

NET ASSETS
Without donor restrictions (deficit) 7,631,019                  (81,413)                5,437,875            (5,067,641)          7,919,840             
With donor restrictions 305,000                     589,228               -                       -                      894,228                

Total net assets 7,936,019                  507,815               5,437,875            (5,067,641)          8,814,068             

Total liabilities and net assets 10,894,284$              514,199$             19,236,180$        (6,415,786)$        24,228,877$         

L I A B I L I T I E S   A N D   N E T   A S S E T S

A S S E T S

LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Without With Donor Without With Donor
Donor Restictions Restrictions Total Donor Restictions Restrictions Total

Revenues and support:
Federal grants 2,013,047$                -$                          2,013,047$                -$                          -$                          -$                          
State grants 12,191,152 -                            12,191,152                -                            -                            -                            
Tuition and activity income 210,945 -                            210,945                     -                            -                            -                            
Contributions 264,831 -                            264,831                     82,986 73,335 156,321                     
Payroll Protection Program loan forgiveness 1,611,300                  -                            1,611,300                  -                            -                            -                            
Other income 97,416 -                            97,416                       2,028 -                            2,028                         
Net assets released from restrictions -                            -                            -                            15,283                       (15,283)                     -                            

Total revenues and support 16,388,691                -                            16,388,691                100,297                     58,052                       158,349                     

Expenses:
Program services:

Elementary and kindergarten 4,920,137 -                            4,920,137                  -                            -                            -                            
Prekindergarten 427,998 -                            427,998                     -                            -                            -                            
High school 451,671 -                            451,671                     -                            -                            -                            
Special education 1,373,692 -                            1,373,692                  -                            -                            -                            
Operations and maintenance 1,191,614 -                            1,191,614                  -                            -                            -                            
Extracurricular activities 4,449                         -                            4,449                         -                            -                            -                            
Aftercare 238,967 -                            238,967                     -                            -                            -                            
Student services 2,472,069 -                            2,472,069                  -                            -                            -                            
Other program services 350,960 -                            350,960                     -                            -                            -                            

Total program services 11,431,557                -                            11,431,557                -                            
Support services 4,494,843 -                            4,494,843                  167,296 -                            167,296                     

Total expenses 15,926,400                -                            15,926,400                167,296                     -                            167,296                     

Capital contributions -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Change in net assets 462,291                     -                            462,291                     (66,999)                     58,052                       (8,947)                       

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR, Restated 7,168,728                  305,000                     7,473,728                  (14,414)                     531,176                     516,762                     

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 7,631,019$                305,000$                   7,936,019$                (81,413)$                   589,228$                   507,815$                   

(continued)

LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS
CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans Amis du Lycée Français 

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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Without With Donor Consolidated
Donor Restictions Restrictions Total Eliminations Total

Revenues and support:
Federal grants -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          2,013,047$                
State grants -                            -                            -                            -                            12,191,152                
Tuition and activity income -                            -                            -                            -                            210,945                     
Contributions -                            -                            -                            -                            421,152                     
Payroll Protection Program loan forgiveness -                            -                            -                            -                            1,611,300                  
Other income 280,002 -                            280,002                     (280,002)                   99,444                       
Net assets released from restrictions -                            -                            -                            -                            -                            

Total revenues and other support 280,002                     -                            280,002                     (280,002)                   16,547,040                

Expenses:
Program services:

Elementary and kindergarten -                            -                            -                            -                            4,920,137                  
Prekindergarten -                            -                            -                            -                            427,998                     
High school -                            -                            -                            -                            451,671                     
Special education -                            -                            -                            -                            1,373,692                  
Operations and maintenance -                            -                            -                            (280,002)                   911,612                     
Extracurricular activities -                            -                            -                            -                            4,449                         
Aftercare -                            -                            -                            -                            238,967                     
Student services -                            -                            -                            -                            2,472,069                  
Other program services -                            -                            -                            -                            350,960                     

Total program services -                            -                            -                            (280,002)                   11,151,555                
Support services 370,671 -                            370,671                     -                            5,032,810                  

Total expenses 370,671                     -                            370,671                     (280,002)                   16,184,365                

Capital contributions 2,381,199                  -                            2,381,199                  (2,381,199)                -                            

Change in net assets 2,290,530                  -                            2,290,530                  (2,381,199)                362,675                     

NET ASSETS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR,restate 3,147,345                  -                            3,147,345                  (2,686,442)                8,451,393                  

NET ASSETS AT END OF YEAR 5,437,875$                -$                          5,437,875$                (5,067,641)$              8,814,068$                

(concluded)

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS

1601 Leonidas, LLC

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS ÐE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
SCHEÐULE OF COMPENSATION, BENEFITS, 
ANÐ OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAÐ 

FOR THE YEAR ENÐED JUNE 30, 2022 

Agency Head Name: Danielle DufaucharcL Interim CEO 

Purpose 

Salary 

Benefits - retirement 
Benefits - insurance 
Life insurance/disability 

Amount 

$ 173,875 

12,353 
5,099 

558 
$ 191,885 

See accompanying independent auditors report. 
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P&N 
Post[ethwaite & Nettervi[[e 

30th Floor, Energy Centre, 1 100 Poydras Street — New Orleans, LA 701 63 

One Galleria Blvd., Suite 2100 — Metairie, LA70001 

504-837-5990 Phone — 504-834-3609 Fax — pncpa.com 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON 

AN AUIMT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENTA UÐITING STANÐARDS 

To the Board of Directors of 
Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated financial statements of Lycée 
Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (Lycée or the Organization) which comprise the consolidated statement of 
financial position as of June 30, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional 
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 1, 2022. 

Report on Intema1 Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and perfoiming our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered the 
Organization s intemal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
consolidated fmancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Organization s intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Organizations intemal control. 

A deficiency in internai controi exists when the design or operation ofa control does not allow management 
or employees, in the noimal course ofperfoiming their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entitys 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may 
exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. We did identify a deficiency in 
intemal control, described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-
00 1 that we consider to be a significant deflciency. 
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P&N 
Post[ethwaite & Nettervi[Le 

Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Organization s consolidated financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we perfoniied tests ofits compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance or other matters that is required to be reported 
under Government Auditing Standards and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings 
and questioned costs as iteiii 2022-001. 

Organization s Response to Findings 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the Organizations 
response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accoiiipanying schedule offindings and 
questioned costs. The Organizations response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit ofthe consolidated fmancial stateiiients and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

Purpose ofthis Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization s 
intemal control or on coiiipliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfoniied in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organizations intemal control and coiiipliance. 
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
Deceiiiber 1, 2022 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INÐEPENDENT AUIMTORS REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REOUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 

GUIDANCE 

To the Board ofDirectors of 
Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans 
New Orleans, Louisiana 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Feðeral Proram 

Opinion oii Eacli Ma/or Federa! Program 

We have audited Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (a nonprofit organization) (Lycée or 
Organization) compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compiiance 
Suppiement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Lycées major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30, 2022. Lycée s major federal programs are identified in the summary ofauditors results 
section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, Lycée complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2022. 

Basisfor Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code ofFederai Reguiations Part 200, Unijorm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principies, and 
Audit Requirements for Federai Awards (Unifonn Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards 
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of 
Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of Lycée and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. Our audit does not provide a legal deterrnination of Lycée s compliance with the coinpliance 
requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities ofManagemenrfor Coinpliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requireinents referred to above and for the design, 
impleinentation, and maintenance of effective intemal control over compliance with the requirements of 
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to Lycées 
federal programs. 
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Auditors Responsibilitiesfor the Audil of C49lnpliullce 

Our objectivcs arc to obtain rcasonablc assurancc about whcthcr matcrial noncompliancc with thc 
compliancc rcquircmcnts rcfcrrcd to abovc occurrcd, whcthcr duc to fraud or crror, and cxprcss an opinion 
on Lycécs compliancc bascd on our audit. Rcasonablc assurancc is a high lcvcl of assurancc but is not 
absolutc assurancc and thcrcforc is not a guarantcc that an audit conductcd in accordancc with gcncrally 
acccptcd auditing standards, GovernmentAuditing Standards, and thc Uniform Guidancc will always dctcct 
matcrial noncompliancc whcn it cxists. Thc risk of not dctccting matcrial noncompliancc rcsulting from 
fraud is highcr than for that rcsulting from crror, as fraud may involvc collusion, forgcry, intcntional 
omissions, misrcprcscntations, or thc ovcrridc of intcmal control. Noncompliancc with thc compliancc 
rcquircmcnts rcfcrrcd to abovc is considcrcd matcrial if thcrc is a substantial likclihood that, individually 
or in thc aggrcgatc, it would influcncc thc judgmcnt madc by a rcasonablc uscr ofthc rcport on compliancc 
about Lycéc s compliancc with thc rcquircmcnts of cach major fcdcral program as a wholc. 

In performing an audit in accordancc with gcncrally acceptcd auditing standards, Government Auditing 
Standards, and thc Uniform Guidancc, wc: 

. Excrcisc profcssional judgmcnt and maintain profcssional skcpticism throughout thc audit. 

• Idcntify and asscss thc risks ofmatcrial noncompliancc, whcthcr duc to fraud or crror, and dcsign 
and perform audit proccdurcs rcsponsivc to thosc risks. Such proccdurcs includc cxamining, on a 
tcst basis, cvidcncc rcgarding Lycécs compliancc with thc compliancc rcquircmcnts rcfcrrcd to 
abovc and performing such othcr proccdurcs as wc considcrcd ncccssary in thc circumstanccs. 

Obtain an undcrstanding of Lycécs intcmal control ovcr compliancc rcicvant to thc audit in ordcr 
to dcsign audit proccdurcs that arc appropriatc in thc circumstanccs and to tcst and rcport on intcmal 
control ovcr compliancc in accordancc with thc Uniform Guidancc, but not for thc purposc of 
cxprcssing an opinion on thc cffcctivcncss of Lycécs intcmal control ovcr compliancc. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is cxprcsscd. 

Wc arc rcquircd to cornmunicatc with thosc chargcd with govcmancc rcgarding, among othcr mattcrs, thc 
planncd scopc and timing of thc audit and any significant dcficicncics and matcrial wcakncsscs in intcmal 
control ovcr compliancc that wc idcntificd during thc audit. 

Other Matters 

Thc rcsults of our auditing proccdurcs discloscd an instancc of noncompliancc which is rcquircd to bc 
rcportcd in accordancc with thc Uniform Guidancc and which is dcscribcd in thc accompanying schcdulc 
of findings and qucstioncd costs as itcm 2022-002. Our opinion on cach major fcdcral program is not 
modificd with rcspcct to this mattcr. 
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Report on Interna1 Control over Compliance 

Our consideration ofintemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditors 
Responsibilities for the Audit ofCompliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 
in intemal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal 
control over compliance and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 
not identified. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to 
be material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in intemal 
control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

A deficiency in internai controi over compiiance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the nonTnal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A materiai weakness in internai controi over compliance is a deficiency, 
or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A signijìcant deficiency in internai control 
over compiiance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
intemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance. 
We consider the deficiency in intemal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as item 2022-02 to be a significant deficiency. 

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control 
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on Lycées response to 
the intemal control over compliance findings identified in our compliance audit described in the 
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Lycées response was not subjected to the other 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the 
response. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
December 1, 2022 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
SCHEDULE OF EXPEND1TURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

Feleral Grantor/tass- Assistance Pass-Through Federal 
Through Grantor Listing Number Grantors Number Expenditures 

United States Department Ariculture 
Passed through ihe Louisiana Depaitment ofEducation: 

National Sch()()1 IAlnch 1rogram 

Total United States Department of Agriculture 

United States Department of Education 
Passed through the Louisiana I)epariinent ofEducation: 
Title I - Grants to Local Education Agencies 
Direct Student Services - Grants to Local Education Agencies 

Title 11 - Part A, Teacher & Principa1 Training & Recrtuting 
Title 11! - Iinmigrant 
Special Education, IDEA Part B 
Special Education, Preschool Grants 

Education Stabilization Fund - COVID-19 
COVID - ESSER 11 Formula 
COVID - ESSER 11! Formula 
COVID - ESSER IIIEB Interventions 

Total Education Stabilization Fund 

Department of Health and Human Services 
Passed through the Louisiana Department of Education: 

LDH Safer Smarter Schools 

10.5551 Unknown $ 602,891 

602,891 

276,755 
8,570 

285,325 

37,093 
4,129 

163,176 
4,455 

300,186 
153,827 
279,029 
733,042 

1,227,220 

84.0I0A 28-22-T1-LI 
84.0 10A 28-22-DSS-L1 

84.367 Unknown 
84.365 Unknown 

84.027A2 28-22-BI-L1 
84. 173A2 28-22-P1-L1 

84.425D 28-20-ESRF-L1 
84.425U 28-20-ESRF-L2 
84.425U 28-20-ESRF-L3 

Total United States Department of Education 

93.323 Unknown 43,500 

Total Department of Health and Human Services 

Federal Comrnunications Commission 
í\nericin lescue Plan Act tf 202 1- Emergency Connectivity Fund 

Total Federal C()mmunicati()ns Commission 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards  

43,500 

N/A 139,436 

139,436 

$ 2,013,047 

Child nutntion cluster 602,891 
2 Special education cluster 167,63 1 

See the accompanying notes to the schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2022 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the federal 
grant activity of Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (Lycée) under programs of the federal 
government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of Title 2 Us. Code ofFederal Regulations Part 200, Unijorm 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirementsfor Federal Awards (Uniform 
Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Lycée, it is not 
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of Lycée. 
Lycées reporting entity is defined in Note I to the conso1idated financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2022. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting, which is 
described in Note 1 to Lycées consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022. 
Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance wherein certain types of expenditures are not a1lowable or are limited as to 
reimbursement. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts 
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the consolidated financial statements. 

3. Relationship to Consolidated Financial Statements 

Federal revenues of $2,01 3,047 are included in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. 

4. De Minimis Cost Rate 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, Lycée did not elect to use the 10% de minimis cost rate as 
covered in §200.414 ofthe Uniform Guidance. 

Amounts Passed through to Subrecipients 

During the year ended June 30, 2022, Lycée did not pass through any federa1 fimding to subrecipients. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONZED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

(1) Summary of IndeDendent Auditors Results 

Financial Statemenîs 

Type ofauditors report issued: Unmodified 
. Material weakness(es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identifled that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? Yes 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes 

Federal Awards 

Interna1 controls over major programs: 

. Material weakness(es) identified? 

• Significant deficiency(ies) identified that 
are not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type ofauditors report issued on compliance for major programs: 
opinion 

Any audit flndings which are required to be reported under 
the Uniform Guidancc? 

Identiflcation ofmajor programs: 

84:OIOA Tit1e I- Grants to Local Education Agencies 

Educaîion Stabilization Fund (ESF): 
84:425D COVID-19 ESSERF 11 Formula 
84:425U COVID-19 ESSERF 111 Formula 
84:425U COVID-19 ESSERF LIIEB Interventions 

Dollar thrcshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 

Auditee qualifled as a low-risk auditee under Section 530 ofThe Uniform Guidancc 

No 

Yes 

Unmodified 

Yes 

$ 750,000 

No 

-31 - 



LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONZED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FINDING — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2022-001: Interna1 Control over Financial Statement Preparation of the Consolidateð Subsidiary 

Criîeria: The definition of internal control over financial reporting includes 
ensuring that policies andprocedures exist that pertain to an entitys ability 
to initiate, record, process, and report financial data consistent with the 
assertion embodied in the annual consolidated financial statements, which 
for the Organization, is that consolidated financial statements are prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

Condition: During our audit procedures related to the new building addition, we noted 
that there were building costs not capitalized and the related depreciation 
expense was not recorded in the general ledger for 1601Leonidas, LLC. 
The new building was placed in service in December 202 1 and therefore 
deprecation for six months should have been recorded. As such, upon 
consolidation, fixed assets were understated at year-end prior to the 
correction. Also, the intercompany amounts did not reconcile and 
therefore the consolidation entries were not ba1anced. Interest related to 
the notes payable was not accrued at year end. 

Cause: The Consolidating Subsidiary is in the second year of operations and the 
accounting is done by a third-party vendor. The trial balance provided by 
the third-party vendor did not properly reflect the amounts for the building, 
accumulated depreciation, and interest payable. This is a repeat finding 
from the prior year. 

Effect: The Organization has a significant deficiency in their internal control over 
financial reporting as it relates to the consolidated subsidiary. 

Recommendaîion: We recommend that management review the flxed asset listing, related 
depreciation and interest payable to ensurc that the amounts are properly 
recorded on a monthly basis. 

View ofResponsible Official: Managernent agrees and is concurrently making updates to our policies, 
procedures, and related control processes. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONZED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

2022 — 002) Graduation Rate Cohort Documentation 
U.S. DeDartment of Education 

84.010 Titie 1 — Grants to Local Education Aencies 

Ouestioned Costs: Undetermined. 

Criteria: The Organization must report graduation rate data for all public high schools 
at the school level using the 4-year adjusted cohort rate under 34 CFR section 
200.19(b)(1)(i)-(iv)). On1y students who earn a regular high school diploma 
may be counted as a graduate for purposes of calculating the 4-year adjusted 
cohort graduation rate. To remove a student from the cohort, a school must 
coaïfirm, in writing, that the student transferred out, emigrated to another 
country, or is deceased. Lycée is responsible for assigning exit codes to any 
student who leaves the Organization. Only specific exit codes are deemed 
legitimate reasons for leaving the Organization and will cause the leaver to not 
bc included in the cohorts graduation index calculations. These codes relate 
to death, transfers out of the state or countiy, transfers to non-public schools, 
transfers to home study/in-school private schooling, and transfers to Early 
college Admissions Programs. 

Specific documentation must be maintained in order for students to be 
considered legitimate leavers from the cohort. The Organization is also 
responsible for developing a system of internal controls to ensure the proper 
documentation is retained for all leavers of the cohort. 

Universe/ 
Population Size: The sample of cohort removals should be selected from a universe that 

includes all student that left the Organization due transferring to a diploma 
awarding school or program, death, or emigration to another countly. Based 
on these requirements, the total universe is 2 1 students who are considered 
leavers of the cohort during the year ended June 30, 2022. This is also 
considered the population size. 

Samyle Size: Based on sampling guidance for audits performed under the Uniform 
Guidancc, a non-statistical sample of 5 leavers was selected for testing. 

Condition(s): While testing compliance and internal controls with respect to 34 CFR 
§200. 19(b), 2 of 5 leavers had exceptions to the required documentation set 
forth by the Louisiana Administrative Code Title 28, Part LXXXIII, Chapter 
6, §61 1. The Organization does not have procedures in place to ensure 
adequate documentation is maintained to support the removal ofstudents from 
a cohort. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONZED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

2022 — 002) Graduation Rate Cohort Documentation 
U.S. Deiartment of Education 

84.010 Title I — Grants to Local Education Aencies (continued) 

Cause: The Organization has experienced turnover, which has resulted in 
inconsistency in the execution of the control and ensuring documentation is 
adequately maintained. 

Effect: The Organization is non-compliant with maintaining proper graduation rate 
cohort documentation. In addition, without proper internal controls over the 
graduation rate cohort process, appropriate levels ofreview may not occur, and 
therefore the Organization may not be complying with all ofits responsibilities 
over Title I. 

Recommendation: The Organization should establish procedures at the program administration 
level to ensure appropriate documentation is obtained related to removal of 
students from a cohort in accordance with Louisiana Administrative Code Title 
28, Part LXXXIIII, Chapter 6, §61 1. 

Repeat Finding: No. 

View of Resyonsible Official: Management agrees and is concurrently making updatcs to our 
policies, procedures, and related control processes. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FINDING — FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT 

2021-001: Interna1 Control over Financial Staternent Preparation of the Consolidated Subsidiary 

Criteria: The dcfmition of intema1 control over financial reporting includes 
ensuring that policies and proccdurcs cxist that pertain to an entity s ability 
to initiatc, rccord, proccss, and rcport financial data consistcnt with thc 
asscrtion cmbodicd in thc annual consolidatcd financial statcmcnts, which 
for thc Organization, is that consolidatcd financial statcmcnts arc prcparcd 
in accordancc with gcncrally acccptcd accounting principlcs (GAAP). 

Condition: On july 1, 2020 Lycéc transfcrrcd 100% ofits mcmbcrship intcrcst in 1601 
Lconidas to a ncwly forrncd cntity namcd 1601 Managing Mcmbcr Inc. 
(Consolidatcd Subsidiary). During our scarch for unrccorded liabilities 
for thc consolidatcd subsidiary, wc noted that an invoicc for constmction 
services incurred in Junc was not rccorded as a payablc by thc subsidiary 
in thc proper period. We also noted that thc associatcd rctainagc payable 
for thc constmction in progrcss was not rccorded. As such, upon 
consolidation, payablcs and property and equipmcnt wcre understatcd at 
ycar-cnd prior to thc correction. 

Cause: The Consolidating Subsidiary is in the first year of operations and the 
accounting is done by a third-party vendor. Thc trial balance providcd by 
the third-party vendor did not properly rcflcct the outstanding payablc for 
constmction costs incurred in June and the rclated retainagc payable. 

Effect: Thc Organization has a significant deficicncy in their intcmal control ovcr 
financial rcporting as it relatcs to the consolidated subsidiary. 

Recommendation: We rccornmend that managemcnt rcvicw open invoiccs for constmction 
costs and rctainage payable for the Consolidated Subsidiary for a 
minimum of 60 days past ycar cnd to cnsurc that all payablcs are properly 
rccorded at fiscal ycar-cnd. 

View ofResponsible Officiai: Management agrces and is concurrcntly making updatcs to our policies, 
proccdures, and related control proccsses and will include a specific policy 
rclated to constmction projccts and rctainagc payablc. 

Current Status: See 2022-001. 
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LYCÉE FRANCAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS RELATING TO FEDERAL AWARDS 

2021-002: Efluipment anð Real Property - Internal Controls 

84.425C Education Stabilization Fund (ESF) 

Questioned Costs: None determined. 

Criteria: Intema1 controls ovcr fixed assets should be in place to ensure proper accounting 
and financial reporting of these items as well as the safeguarding of those assets 
for unauthorized use or disposition. The property control system shall include an 
annual inventory and evaluation of all fixed assets with a value of $5,000 or more. 

Universe/Popuiation: nla 

Condition: The current accounting procedures over fixed assets are not being implemented by 
the Organization s personnel. An annual physical inventory count at the building 
level was not performed in accordance with established policy as noted in the 
above criteria. 

Cause: Due to tumover in the Organization the annual inventory count was not perforrned. 

ffect: Without proper tracking, equipment acquired under Federal awards may have the 
potential for unauthorized use or disposition. 

Recommendation: The Organization should consider providing additional training to IT personnel 
and remind them of the importance of established procedures and the 
implementation of those procedures to ensure proper intemal controls to avoid 
misappropriation of assets acquired under Federal awards. 

View of Responsible Official: Management agrees and is concurrently making updates to our policies, 
procedures, and related control processes as well. 

Current Status: Resolveð. 
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A Professional Accounting Corporation 

Independent Accountants Report 
On App1vin Areed-Upon Procedtires 

To the Board ofDirectors 
Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans 
New Orleans, Louisiana: 

We have performed the procedures enumerated below on the perfoniiance and statistical data 
accompanying the annual financial statements of the Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (Lycée) for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022; and to determine whether the specified schedules are free of obvious 
errors and omissions, in compliance with Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 14.1. Management of Lycée is 
responsible for its perfoniiance and statistical data. 

Lycée has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures perfoniied are appropriate to meet the intended 
purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the performance and statistical 
data accompanying the annual financial statements. Additionally, the Louisiana Department of Education 
and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor have agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures perfoniied are 
appropriate for their purposes. This report may not be suitable for any other purpose. The procedures 
perfoniied may not address all the items of interest to a user of this report and may not iiieet the needs of 
all users ofthis report and, as such, users are responsible for determining whether the procedures performed 
are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures and associated findings are as follows: 

Generai Fund Instructionai and Suyyort Exyenditures and Certain Locai Revenue Sources (Schedule 1) 

We selected a sample of 25 transactions, reviewed supporting documentation, and observed that 
the saiiipled expenditures/revenues are classified correctly and are reported in the proper aiiiounts 
among the following amounts reported on Schedule 1: 

. Total General Fund lnstructional Expenditures, 
• Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures, 
• Total Local Taxation Revenue (no revenue reported), 
. Total Local Eamings on lnvestment in Real Property (no revenue reported), 
• Total State Revenue in Lieu of Taxes (no revenue reported), 
• Nonpublic Textbook Revenue (no revenue reported), and 
• Nonpublic Transportation Revenue (no revenue reported). 

We noted no exceptions. 
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Class Size Characteristics (Scheduie 2) 

2. Wc obtained a list of classes by school, school type, and class size as reported on the schedule. 
We then traced a sample of 10 classes to the October st  roll books and observed that the class 
was properly classified on Schedule 2: 

We noted no exceptions. 

Education Leveis/Experience ofPubiic Schooi Staff 

We obtained October st  PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
prepared by management), including full-time teachers, principals, and assistant principals by 
classification, as well as their level of education and experience, and obtained management s 
representation that the datallisting was complete. We then selected a sample of 25 individuals, 
traced to each individuals personnel file, and observed that each individuals education level and 
experience was properly classified on the PEP data or equivalent listing prepared by management. 

We noteð two exceptions in which an inðiviðuals years of experience was not able to be 
traceð to the inðiviðuals personnel file, therefore we are not able to ðetermine whether 
inðiviðuals years of experience was classifieð correctly in the PEP ðata submitteð. 

Pubiic School StaffData: Average Saiaries 

4. We obtained June 30th  PEP data submitted to the Department of Education (or equivalent listing 
provided by management) of all classroom teachers, including base salary, extra compensation, 
and ROTC or rehired retiree status, as well as full-tirne equivalents, and obtained managements 
representation that the data/listing was complete. We then selected a sample of 25 individuals, 
traced to each individuals personnel file, and observed that each individuals salary, extra 
compensation, and full-time equivalents were properly included on the PEP data (or equivalent 
listing prepared by management). 

We noteð no exceptions. 

We were engaged by Lycée to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants, and the standards applicable to attestation engagements contained in Governrnent 
Auditing Standards, issued by the United States Comptroller General. We were not engaged to and did not 
conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression of an 
opinion or conclusion, respectively, on the performance and statistical data. Accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might have come 
to our attention that would have been reported to you. 
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Wc arc rcquircd to bc indcpcndcnt of Lycéc and to mcct our othcr cthical rcsponsibilitics, in accordancc 
with thc rcicvant cthical rcquircmcnts rclatcd to our agrccd-upon proccdurcs cngagcmcnt. 

This rcport is intcndcd solcly to dcscribc thc scopc of tcsting performcd on thc performancc and statistical 
data accompanying thc annual financial statcmcnts of Lycéc, as rcquircd by Louisiana Rcviscd Statuc 
24:5 14.1, and thc rcsult ofthat tcsting, and not to providc an opinion on control or compliancc. Accordingly, 
this rcport is not suitablc for any othcr purposc. Undcr Louisiana Rcviscd Statutc 24: 5 13, this rcport is 
distributcd by thc Louisiana Lcgislativc Auditor as a public documcnt. 

Mctairic, Louisiana 
Dcccmbcr 1, 2022 
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Schedule 1: Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-ørléans 
General Fund Instructiona1 and Support Expenditures and Certain Local Revenue Sources 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022 

General Fund Instructiona1 and Eguipment Expenditures 

Genera Fund Instructiona1 Expenditures: 
Teacher and Student Interaction Activities: 

Classroom Teacher Salaries 
Other Instructiona1 Staff Activities 
Employee Benefits 
Purchased Professional and Technical Services 
Instructiona1 Materials and Supplies 

Total Teacher and Student lnteraction Activities 

Other Instructiona1 Activities 

Pupil Support Activities 
Less: Equipment for Pupil Support Activities 

Net Pupil Support Activities 

Instructiona1 Staff Services 
Less: Equipment for instructional staff services 

Net Instructiona1 Staff Services 

School Administration 
Less: Equipment for School Administration 

Net School Administration 

Total General Funð Instructiona1 Expenditures 

Total General Fund Equipment Expenditures 

$ 4,686,796 
960,972 

1,126,522 
238,372 
558,844 

7,571,506 

791,166 

791,166 

535,992 

535,992 

1,131,241 

1,131,241 

$ 10,029,905 

$ 

Certain Local Revenue Sources 
Not Ápplicable 

Irepared by Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Or1éans 
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Schedule 2: Class Size Characterisfics 
As oføctober 1, 2021 

__________________ Class Size Range __________________ 
1-20 21-26 27-33 34+ 

School Type Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number Percent Number 
Elementary 31% 79 62% 158 6% 15 1% 
Elementary Activity Classes 29% 9 65% 20 6% 2 0% - 
Middle/Junior High 42% 44 58% 60 0% - 0% - 
Middle/Junior High Activity Classes 0% 5 0% 19 0% - 0% - 
High 84% 77 12% 11 3% 3 1% 
HighActivityclasses 86% 6 14% 1 0% - 0% - 
Combination 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% - 
Combination Activity Classes 0% - 0% - 0% - 0% - 

Note: The Board ofElementary and Secondary Education has set specific limits on the maximum size of classes at 
various grade levels. The maximum enrollment in grades K-3 is 26 students and maximum enrollment in grades 4-12 
is 33 students. These limits do not apply to activity classes such as physical education, chorus, band, and other 
classes without maximum enrollment standards. Therefore, these classes are included only as separate line items. 

Prepared by Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-ørléans 
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504-837-5990 Phone — 504-834-3609 Fax — pncpa.com 

Postlethwaite & Nettervitte 

A Professional Accounting Corporation 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS REPORT 
ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDIJRES 

To the Board of Directors of 
Lycée Francais de la Nouvelle Orléans 
And the Louisiana Legislative Auditor: 

We have perfonTned the procedures enumerated in Schedule A on the control and compliance (CIC) areas 
identified in the Louisiana Legislative Auditor s (LLA s) Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for 
the fiscal period july 1, 202 1 through June 30, 2022. Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (a nonprofit 
organization) (Lycée or the Entity) management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. 

Lycée has agreed to and acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate to meet the intended 
purpose of the engagement, which is to perform specified procedures on the C/C areas identified in LLAs 
SAUPs for the fiscal period july 1, 202 1 through June 30, 2022. Additionally, LLA has agreed to and 
acknowledged that the procedures performed are appropriate for its purposes. This report may not be 
suitable for any other purpose. The procedures perfonned may not address all the items ofinterest to a user 
of this report and may not meet the needs of all users of this report and, as such, users are responsible for 
determining whether the procedures performed are appropriate for their purposes. 

The procedures we performed, and the associated fmdings are sumrnarized in the attached Schedule A, 
which is an integral part of this report. 

We were engaged by Lycée to perform this agreed-upon procedures engagement and conducted our 
engagement in accordance with attestation standards established by the Amencan Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and applicable standards of Government Auditing Standards. We were not engaged to 
and did not conduct an examination or review engagement, the objective of which would be the expression 
of an opinion or conclusion, respectively, on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs. Accordingly, we do 
not express such an opinion or conclusion. Had we performed additional procedures, other matters might 
have come to our attention that would have been reported to you. 

We are required to be independent of Lycée and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with 
the relevant ethical requirements related to our agreed-upon procedures engagement. 

This report is intended solely to describe the scope of testing perfonned on those C/C areas identified in the 
SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, 
this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:5 13, this report is 
distributed by the LLA as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
Decernber 1, 2022 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

The procedures performed and the results thereofare set forth below. The procedure is stated first, followed 
by the results ofthe procedure presented in italics. Ifthe item being subjected to the procedures is positively 
identified or present, then the results will read no exception noted orfor step 25 we peiformed the 
procedure and discussed the results with management . If not, then a description of the exception ensues. 

A - Writien Policies and Procedures 

1. Obtain and inspect the entitys written policies and procedures and observe whether they address each 
ofthe following categories and subcategories (ifapplicable to public funds and the entitys operations): 

a) Budgeiing, including preparing, adopting, monitoring, and amending the budget. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Purchasing, including (1) how purchases are initiated; (2) how vendors are added to the vendor 
list; (3) the preparation and approval process of purchase requisitions and purchase orders; (4) 
controls to ensure compliance with the Public Bid Law; and (5) documentation required to be 
maintained for all bids and price quotes. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Disbursements, including processing, reviewing, and approving 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Receipts/Collections, including receiving, recording, and preparing deposits. Also, policies and 
procedures shou1d include managements actions to determine the completeness of all collections 
for each type ofrevenue or agency fund additions (e.g., periodic confirmation with outside parties, 
reconciliation to utility billing after cutoff procedures, reconciliation of traffic ticket number 
sequences, agency fund forfeiture monies confirmation). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Payroll/Personnel, including (1) payroll processing, (2) reviewing and approving time and 
attendance records, including leave and overtime worked, and (3) approval process for employee(s) 
rate ofpay or approval and maintenance ofpay rate schedules. 

No exceptions noted. 

f) Contracting, including (1) types of services requiring written contracts, (2) standard terms and 
conditions, (3) legal review, (4) approval process, and (5) monitoring process. 

No exceptions noted. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

g) Credit Cards (and debit cards, fuel cards, P-Cards, ¡fapplicable),  including (1) how cards are to 
be controlled, (2) allowable business uses, (3) documentation requirements, (4) required approvers 
of statements, and (5) monitoring card usage (e.g., determining the reasonab1eness of fuel card 
purchases). 

No exceptions noted. 

h) Travel and Expense Reimburement, including (1) allowable expenses, (2) dollar thresholds by 
category ofexpense, (3) documentation requirements, and (4) required approvers. 

No exceptions noted. 

i) Ethics, including (1) the prohibitions as defined in Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 42: 1 1 1 1- 1 12 1, 
(2) actions to be taken if an ethics violation takes place, (3) system to monitor possible ethics 
violations, and (4) a requirement that documentation is maintained to demonstrate that all 
employees and officials were notified ofany changes to the entitys ethics policy. 

No excepiions noted. 

j) Debi Service, including (1) debt issuance approval, (2) continuing disclosure/EMMA reporting 
requirements, (3) debt reserve requirements, and (4) debt service requirements. 

The Entiiy has written policiesfor Debt Service; however, the policy does not specijìcally address 
attribute (2) EMMA reporting requirements, attribute (3) debt reserve requirements, or atiribuie 
(4) debt service requirements. 

k) Information Technology Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity, inc1uding (1) identification of 
critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physica1 location 
isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of 
antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software 
patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover 
operations after a critical event. 

The Entiiy has written policies for Disaster Recovery/ Business Continuiiy; however, the policy 
does not specijìcally address atiribute (1) identijìcation of critical data and frequency of data 
backups, (3) periodic testing/verijìcation that backups can be restored, (4) use ofantivirus software 
on all systems, (5) timely application ofall available system and softwarepatches/updates, and (6) 
identijìcation ofpersonnel, processes, and tools needed 10 recover operations afier a critical event. 

1) Sexual Harassment, including R.S. 42:342-344 requirements for (1) agency responsibilities and 
prohibitions, (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 

The Entiiy has written policies for Sexual Harassment however the policy does not specijìcally 
address attribute (2) annual employee training, and (3) annual reporting. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

B - Board or Finance Coni,niflee 

2. Obtain and inspect the boarð/flnance committee minutes for the fiscal period, as well as the boards 
enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or equivalent document in effect during the flscal period, and: 

a) Observe whether the board/finance committee met with a quorum at least monthly, or on a 
frequency in accordance with the boards enabling legislation, charter, bylaws, or other equivalent 
document. 

No exceplion noled. 

b) For those entities reporting on the governmental accounting model, observe whether the minutes 
referenced or included monthly budget-to-actual comparisons on the general fund, quarterly 
budget-to-actual, at a minimum, on proprietary funds, and semi-annual budget- to-actual, at a 
minimum, on all special revenue funds. Alternately, for those entities reporting on the nonprofit 
accounting model, observe that the minufes referenced or includedfinancial activity relating to 
publicfunds fthose publicfunds comprised more than 1O% ofthe entily s collections during lhe 
fiscalperiod. 

No excepfion noted. 

c) For governmental entities, obtain the prior year audit report and observe the unassigned fund 
balance in the general fund. If the general fund had a negative ending unassigned fund ba1ance in 
the prior year audit report, observe that the minutes for at least one meeting during the fiscal period 
referenced or included a formal plan to eliminate the negative unassigned fund balance in the 
general fund. 

No excepfion noted. 

C - Bank Reconciliations 

3. Obtain a Iisting of entity bank accounts for the fisca1 period from management and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entitys main operating 
account. Select the entitys main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all 
accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fisca1 period, obtain and inspect the 
corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for each selected account, and observe that: 

A listing of bank accounts was provided and included a total of 4 bank accounts. Management 
identijìed the entity s main operating accounl. No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming 
this procedure. 

From the listingprovided, we selected 4 bank accounts and obtained the bank reconciliallonsfor 
the month ending June 30, 2022, resulllng in 4 bank reconciliations obtained and subjected to the 
belowprocedures. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of thc rclatcd 
statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member ofmanagementlboard member who does not 
handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initiaied and 
dated, electronica1ly logged); and 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Management has clocumcntation reflecting it has researched reconciling items that have been 
outstanding for morc than 12 months from the statement closing date, ifapplicable. 

No exceptions noted. 

D - Collections (excluding electronicfunds fransftrs) 

4. Obtain a listing ofdeposit sites for the fisca1 period where deposits for cash/checks/money orders (cash) 
are prepared and managements representation that the listing is complete. R.andomly select 5 deposit 
sites (or all deposit sites ifless than 5). 

A listing ofdeposit sites was provided and included a total of ¡ deposit site. No exceptions were noted 
as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

From the listingprovided, we randomly selected ¡ deposit site andperformed the procedures below. 

5. For each deposit site selected, obtain a listing ofcollection locations and managements representation 
that the listing is complete. Randomly select one collection location for each deposit site (i.e. 5 
collection locations for 5 deposit sites), obtain and inspect written policies and procedures relating to 
employee job duties (if no written policies or procedures, inquire of employees about their job duties) 
at each collection location, and observe that job duties are properly segregated at each collection 
location such that: 

A listing of collection loca1ions for each deposit site selected in procedure #4 was provided and 
included a total of ¡ collecli()n location. No exceptions were noted as a result ofpeiforming this 
procedure. 

From each ofthe listings provided, we randomly selected one collection locationfor each deposit site. 
Review ofthe Entily s written policies andprocedures or inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties 
was peiformed in order 10 perform the procedures below. 

a) Employees responsible for cash collections do not share cash drawers/registers. 

No exceptions noted. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

b) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for preparing/making bank 
deposits, unless another employee/official is responsible for reconciling collection documentation 
(e.g. pre-numbered receipts) to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Each employee responsible for collecting cash is not responsible for posting collcction entries to 
the general ledger or subsidiary ledgers, unless another employee/official is responsiblc for 
reconciling ledger postings to each other and to the deposit. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) The employee(s) responsible for reconciling cash collections to the general ledger and/or subsidiary 
Iedgers, by revenue source and/or agency fund additions are not responsible for collecting cash, 
unless another employee verifies the reconciliation. 

No exception noted. 

6. Obtain from management a copy ofthe bond or insurance policy for theft covering all ernployccs who 
have access to cash. Observe the bond or insurance policy for theft was enforced during the fiscal 
period. 

No exception noted. 

7. Randomly select two deposit dates for each of the 5 bank accounts selected for procedure #3 under 
Bank Reconciliations above (select the next deposit date chronologically if no deposits were made 

on the dates randomly selected and randomly select a deposit ifmultiple deposits are made on the same 
day). Alternately, the practitioner may use a source document other than bank statements when 
selecting the deposit datesfor testing, such as a cash collection log, daily revenue report, receipt book, 
etc. Obtain supporting documentation for each ofthe 10 deposits and: 

We randomly selected two deposit datesfor each ofthe ¡ bank account selected in procedure #3. We 
obtained supporting documentationfor each ofthe 2 deposits andperformed theprocedures below. 

a) Observe that receipts are sequentially pre-numbered. 

The Entily does not maintain sequentially pre-numbered receipts. Deposit selectedfor testing was 
a direct deposit. 

b) Trace sequentially pre-numbered receipts, system reports, and other related collection 
documentation to the deposit slip. 

The Entily does not maintain sequentially pre-numbered receipts. Deposit selectedfor testing was 
a direct deposit. 

c) Trace the deposit slip total to the actual deposit per thc bank statement. 

No exceptions noted. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

d) Observe the deposit was made within one business day ofreceipt at the collection Iocation (within 
one week ifthe depository is more than 10 miles from the collection location or the deposit is less 
than $100 and the cash is stored securely in a locked safe or drawer). 

No exceptions noted. 

e) Trace the actual deposit per the bank statement to the general lcdgcr. 

No exceptions noted. 

E - Non-payroll Ðisbursements (excluding card purchases/puvrneiils, iravel rei,nburse,ne,,1s, and petly 
cash purchases) 

8. Obtain a listing of locations that process payments for the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 locations (or all locations if less than 5). 

The listing oflocations that process paymentsfor thefiscalperiod was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selectedfrom the only location andperformed the procedures 
below. 

9. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain a listing of those employees involved with non-
payroll purchasing and payment functions. Obtain written policies and procedures relating to employee 
job duties (if the agency has no written policies and procedures, inquire of employees about their job 
duties), and observe that job duties are properly segregated such that: 

The listing ofemployees involved with non-payrollpurchasing andpaymentfiinctionsfor eachpayment 
processing location selected in procedure #8 was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
perfor,ning this procedure. 

Review ofthe Entily s written policies andprocedures or inquiry with employee(s) regardingjob duties 
was performed in order to perform the procedures below. 

a) At least two employees are involved in initiating a purchasc rcqucst, approving a purchase, and 
placing an order/making the purchase. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) At least two employees are involved in processing and approving paymcnts to vendors. 

No exceptions noted. 
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AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 
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c) The employee responsible for processing payments is prohibited from adding/modifying vendor 
files, unless another employee is responsible for periodically reviewing changes to vendor files. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Either the employee/official responsible for signing checks mails the payment or gives the signed 
checks to an employee to mail who is not responsible for processing payments. 

No exceptions noted. 

10. For each location selected under #8 above, obtain the entitys non-payroll disbursement transaction 
population (excluding cards and travel reimbursements) and obtain managements representation that 
the population is complete. Randomly select 5 disbursements for each location, obtain supporting 
documentation for each transaction and: 

A listing ofnon-payroll disbursementsfor each paymentprocessing location selected in procedures #8 
was provided related to the reporting period. No exceptions were noied as a result ofperforming this 
procedure. 

From each of the listings provided, we randomly selected 5 disbursements and peiformed the 
procedures below. 

a) Observe whether the disbursement matched thc related original itemized invoice, and that 
supporting documentation indicates deliverables included on the invoice were received by the 
entity. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Observe whether the disbursement documentation includcd cvidcnce (e.g., initialldate, electronic 
logging) of segregation of duties tested under #9, as applicablc. 

No exceptions noted. 

F - Credii cards/Debit Cards/Fuel Cards/P-Cards 

1 1. Obtain from management a listing of all active credit cards, bank debit cards, fuel cards, and P-cards 
(cards) for the fiscal period, including the card numbers and the names ofthe persons who maintained 
possession ofthe cards. Obtain managements representation that the listing is complete. 

A listing ofcards was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

-8-
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12. Using the listing prepared by management, randomly select 5 cards (or all cards ifless than 5) that were 
used during the fiscal period. Randomly select one monthly statement or combined statement for each 
card (for a debit card, randomly select one monthly bank statement), obtain supporting documentation, 
and: 

From the listingprovided, we randomly selected ¡ card (business credit card) used in thefiscalperiod. 
We randomly selected one monthly statement for each of the card selected and perfonned the 
procedures noted below. 

a) Observe whether there is evidence that the monthly statement or combined statement and 
supporting documentation (e.g., original receipts for creditldebit card purchases, exception reports 
for excessive fuel card usage) were reviewed and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
authorized card holder. [Note: Requiring such approval may constrain the legal authority ofcertain 
public officials (e.g., mayor of a Lawrason Act municipality); these instances should not be 
reported.)] 

No exceptions noied. 

b) Observe that finance charges and late fees were not assessed on the selected statements. 

No exceptions noted. 

13. Using the monthly statements or combined statements selected under #12 above, excluding fuel cards, 
randomly select 10 transactions (or all transactions if less than 10) from each statement, and obtain 
supporting docuinentation for the transactions (i.e., each card should have 10 transactions subject to 
testing). For each transaction, observe it is supported by (1) an original itemized receipt that identifies 
precisely what was purchased, (2) written documentation of the business/public purpose, and (3) 
documentation of the individuals participating in meals (for meal charges only). For missing receipts, 
the practitioner should describe the nature of the transaction and note whether management had a 
compensating control to address missing receipts, such as a missing receipt statement that is subject 
to increased scrutiny. 

We randomly selected 10 iransactions for the card selected in procedure #12 (and performed the 
specfìedprocedures. For ¡ out ofthe 10 items selected an original itemized receipt was notprovided 
due to it being misplaced. 

G - Travel and Travel-Related Expense Reirnbursernents (excluding card transactions) 

14. Obtain from management a listing of all travel and travel-related expense reimbursements during the 
fiscal period and managements representation that the listing or general Iedger is complete. Randomly 
select 5 reimbursements, obtain the related expense reimbursement forms/prepaid expense 
documentation of each selected reimbursement, as well as the supporting documentation. For each of 
the 5 reimbursements selected: 

The listing ofiravel and travel-related expense reimbursements was providedfor thefiscal period. No 
exceplions were noted as a result ofperfonning this procedure. 
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From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 reimbursements and peiformed the procedures 
below. 

a) If rcimburscd using a per dicm, obscrvc thc approvcd rcimburscmcnt ratc is no morc than thosc 
ratcs cstablishcd cithcr by thc Statc of Louisiana or thc U.S. Gcncral Scrviccs Administration 
(www.gsa.gov). 

Ofthe 5 reimbursements selectedfor ourprocedures, 3 used aper diem. 

a) If rcimburscd using actual costs, obscrvc thc rcimburscment is supported by an original itcmizcd 
rcccipt that idcntifics prcciscly what was purchascd. 

No exceptions noted. 

b) Obscrvc cach rcimburscmcnt is supportcd by documcntation of thc busincss/public purposc (for 
mcal chargcs, obscrvc that thc documcntation includcs thc namcs ofthosc individuals participating) 
and othcr documcntation rcquircd by writtcn policy (proccdurc #lh). 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Obscrvc cach rcimburscmcnt was rcvicwcd and approved, in writing, by someone other than the 
person rccciving rcimburscmcnt. 

No exceptions noted. 

H - Contracts 

15. Obtain from managcmcnt a listing of all agrccmcnts/contracts for profcssional scrviccs, materials and 
supplics, lcascs, and construction activitics that wcrc initiatcd or rcncwcd during thc fiscal period. 
Alternately, the practitioner may use an equivalent selection source, such as an active vendor list. 
Obtain managcmcnts rcprcscntation that thc listing is complctc. Randomly scicct 5 contracts (or all 
contracts if less than 5) from thc listing, cxcluding thc practitioncr s contract, and: 

An active vendor list for the fiscal period was provided. No exceptions were noted as a result of 
performing this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 contracts and performed the procedures below. 

a) Obscrvc whcthcr thc contract was bid in accordancc with thc Louisiana Public Bid Law (c.g., 
solicitcd quotcs or bids, advcrtiscd), if rcquircd by law. 

No exceptions noted. 
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b) Observe whether the contract was approved by the governing body/board, if rcquircd by policy or 
law (e.g. Lawrason Act, Home Rule Charter). 

No exceptions noted. 

c) If the contract was amended (e.g., change order), observe the original contract terms provided for 
such an amendment and that amendments were made in compliance with the contract terms (e.g., 
if approval is required for any amendment, was approval documented). 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Randomly select one payment from the fiscal period for each of the 5 contracts, obtain thc 
supporting invoice, agree the invoice to the contract terms, and observe the invoice and rclatcd 
payment agreed to the terms and conditions ofthe contract. 

We randomly selected ¡ paymentfor the 5 contracts selected in procedure #15 andperformed the 
specijìedprocedures. No exceptions noted. 

I - Payroll and Personnel 

16.Obtain a listing of employees/elected officials employed during the fisca1 period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 employees/officials, obtain related paid 
salaries and personnel files, and agree paid salaries to authorized salaries/pay rates in the personne1 
files. 

A listing of employees/elected officials employed during thefiscal year was provided. No exceptions 
were noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

Frorn the listing provided, we randomly selected 5 employees/officials and performed the specijìed 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

17.Randomly select one pay period during the fisca1 period. For the 5 employees/officia1s selected under 
# 16 above, obtain attendance records and leave documentation for the pay period, and: 

We randomly selected Ipay period during thefiscal period and performed the procedures belowfor 
the 5 employees/officials selected in procedure #16. 

a) Observe a1l selected employees/officials documented their daily attendmce and leave (e.g., 
vacation, sick, compensatoly). (Note: Generally, an elected official is not eligible to earn leave and 
does not document his/her attendmce and leave. However, if the elected officia1 is earning leave 
according to policy and/or contract, the official should document his/her daily attendance and 
leave.). 

No exceptions noted. 

- 11-
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b) Observe whether supervisors approved the attcndancc and lcavc of thc scicctcd cmployees or 
officials. 

No exceptions noted. 

c) Observe that any leave accrued or taken during the pay period is reflected in the entitys cumulative 
leave records. 

No exceptions noted. 

d) Observe the rate paid to the employees or officiais agrcc to thc authorizcd salary/pay rate found 
within the personnel file. 

No exceptions noted. 

18.Obtain a listing of those employees or officials that received termination payments during the fiscal 
period and managements representation that the list is complete. Randomly select two employees or 
officials, obtain related documentation of the hours and pay rates used in managements termination 
payment calculations and the entitys policy on termination payments. Agree the hours to the employee 
or officials cumulative leave records, agree the pay rates to the employee or officials authorized pay 
rates in the employee or officials personnel files, and agree the termination payment to entity policy. 

A listing ofemployees/officials receiving termination payments during thefiscal period was provided. 
No exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming thisprocedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 2 employees/officials and peiformed the specijìed 
procedures. No exceptions noted. 

19.Obtain managements representation that employer and employee portions ofthird-party payroll related 
amounts (e.g., payroil taxes, retirement contributions, hea1th insurance premiums, gamishments, 
workers compensation premiums, etc.) have been paid, and any associated forms have been filed, by 
required deadlines. 

No exceptions noted. 

J - Ethics (excludiiig nonprofils) 

20. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officia1s from procedure #16 under Payroil and Pcrsonncl 
above obtain ethics documentation from management, and: 

a) Observe whether the documentation demonstrates each employee/officia1 complctcd onc hour of 
ethics training during the fiscal period. 

Not applicable. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS DE LA NOUVELLE-ORLÉANS 
AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES PERFORMED AND ASSOCIATED FINDINGS 

JIJNE 30, 2022 
Schedule A 

b) Observe whether the cntity maintains documentation which demonstrates each employee and 
official were notified of any changcs to the entitys ethics policy during the flscal period, as 
applicable. 

Not applicable. 

K - Debi Service 

2 l. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes issued during the fiscal period and managements representation that 
the Iisting is complete. Select all bonds/notes on the Iisting, obtain supporting documentation, and 
observe State Bond Commission approval was obtained for each bondlnote issued. 

Not applicable. 

22. Obtain a listing of bonds/notes outstanding at the end of the fiscal period and managements 
representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select one bond/note, inspect debt covenants, 
obtain supporting documentation for the reserve balance and payments, and agree actual reserve 
balances and payments to those required by debt covenants (including contingency flinds, short-lived 
asset funds, or other funds required by the debt covenants). 

A listing ofbonds/notes outstanding at the end ofthefiscal period was provided. No exceptions were 
noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

From the listing provided, we randomly selected 2 bond/note andperformed the specijìedprocedures. 
No exceptions noted. 

L - FraudNotice 

23. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the flscal period and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, 
obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the 
legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled. 

A listing of misappropriations ofpublic funds and assets during the fiscal period was provided. No 
exceptions were noted as a result ofperforming this procedure. 

The Entity had no allegations during the reportingperiod. 

24. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 
concerning the reporting ofmisappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse ofpublic funds. 

The notice was posted on the Entity s premises and website. 
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M - Information Technology Disaster Recoveiy/Business Continuiiy 

25. Perform the following procedures, verbally discuss the results with management, and report We 
performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

a) Obtain and inspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has backed up its critical data 
(ifno written documentation, inquire ofpersonnel responsible for backing up critical data) and 
observe that such backup occurred within the past week. If backups are stored on a physical 
medium (e.g., tapes, CDs), observe evidence that backups are encrypted before being 
transported. 

Weperformed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

b) Obtain and ínspect the entitys most recent documentation that it has tested/verified that its 
backups can be restored (if no written documentation, inquire of personnel responsible for 
testing/verifring backup restoration) and observe evidence that the test/verification was 
successfully performed within the past 3 months. 

Weperformed the procedure and discussed the re.sults with management. 

c) Obtain a listing of the entitys computers currently in use and their related locations, and 
managements representation that the listing is complete. Randomly select 5 computers and 
observe while management demonstrates that the selected computers have cnrrent and active 
antivirus software and that the operating system and accounting system software in use are 
currently supported by the vendor. 

We performed the procedure and discussed the results with management. 

N - Sexual Harassmeni 

26. Using the 5 randomly selected employees/officials from procedure #16 under Payroll and Personnel 
above, obtain sexual harassment training documentation from management, and observe the 
documentation demonstrates each employee/official completed at least one hour ofsexual harassment 
training during the calendar year. 

Not applicablefor Type 2 charters in accordance with R.S. 42:341-345. 

27. Observe the entity has posted its sexual harassment policy and complaint procedure on its website (or 
in a conspicuous location on the entitys premises if the entity does not have a website). 

Not applicablefor Type 2 charters in accordance with R.S. 42:341-345. 
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28. Obtain the entitys annual sexual harassment report for the current fiscal period, observe that the report 
was dated on or before February 1, and observe it includes the applicable requirements of R.S. 42:344: 

The annual sexual harassment reportfor the currentfiscalperiod was notprovided. Exception noted. 

a) Number and percentage of public servants in the agency who have completed the training 
requirements; 

Not applicable. 

b) Number ofsexual harassment complaints received by the agency; 

Not applicable. 

c) Number ofcomplaints which resulted in a finding that scxual harassmcnt occurrcd; 

Not applicable. 

d) Number of complaints in which the finding of sexual harassment resuited in disciplinc or 
corrective action; and 

Not applicable. 

e) Amount of time it took to resolve each complaint. 

Not applicable. 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS 
Corrective Action Plan for the Statewide Agreed Upon Procedures Audit Findings 
for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Submitted to: 

Postlethwaite & Nettervilie, APAC 
l Ga!leria Blvd, Suite 2100 
Metairie, LA 70001 

Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-0rléans (a nonprofit organization) (Lycée) respectively 
submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

RESPONSE TO FINDINGS: 

We agree with the auditors comments. We are concurrently making updates to our policies, 
procedures, and related control processes. 

Signature: Date: December 1. 2022 

ve> . 
Keea ya Chenier, MPA 
Chief Financial Officer 

5951 PATTON STREET• NEW ORLEANS - LOUISIANA• 70115 

(504) 6205500 • WWW.LFNO.ORG 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS 
Corrective Action Plan for the Audit Findings for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Submitted to: 

Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC 
1 Galleria Bivd, Suite 2100 
Metairie, LA 7000 1 

Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-ûrléans (a nonprofit organization) (Lycée) respectively 
submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

RESPONSES TO F1NDINGS: 

2022-001: Internal Control over Financial Statement Preparation ofthe Consolidated 
Subsidiary 
Response: We agree with the auditors comments. We are concurrently making updates to our 
policies, procedures, and reiated control processes. Although an extemal vendor completed 
the iriitial set-up of the 160 1 entity and managed all accounting ftinctions related to the entity 
through FY2022, effective FY2022-2023 the function wi[1 transition to the Lycée Finance 
Team. 

2022-002: Grduation Rate Cohort Documentation U.S. Department of Education 
Response: We agree with the auditors comments. We are concurrently making updates to our 
policies, procedures, and related control processes as well. 

Signature: Date: December 1, 2022 

Keeanya Chenier, MPA 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

505 FATTON STREET NEW ORLEANS LOUISIANA - 70115 

(504) 620-5500 WWWLFNO.ORG 
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LYCÉE FRANÇAIS 
Corrective Action Plan for the Audit Findings for B.E.S.E. Agreed Upon Procedures 
for the year ended June 30, 2022 

Submitted to: 

Postlethwaite & Netterville, APAC 
1 Galleria Blvd, Suite 2100 
Metairie, LA 7000 1 

Lycée Français de la Nouvelle-Orléans (a nonprofit organization) (Lycée) respectively 
submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended June 30, 2022. 

RESPONSE TO FINDINGS: 

We agree with the auditors comments. We are concurrently making updates to our policies, 
procedures, and related control processes. 

Signature: Date: December 1. 2022 

e anya Chenier, MPA 
ChiefFinancial Officer 

5951 PATTON STREET NEW ORLEANS LOUISIANA 70115 

(504) 620-5500 WWW.LJNO.ORG 
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